
MATANUSKA SUSITNA BOROUGH 
AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
Chair – Archie Giddings (5) David Lundin  (1) Stanley Barry   (2) Norman Chance  (3) 
Chris Kepler  (4) Michael Pannone  (6) David Palmer  (7) Bernie Willis  (8) 
Mark Stigar  (9)    
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING                           July 6, 2016 
DSJ BUILDING ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS                         3:00 P.M. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. June 9, 2016 Meeting Minutes 

V. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (three minutes) 

VI. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

A. Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) (Ms. Sara Jansen) 

VII. CORRESPONDENCE & INFORMATION 

VIII. MEMBER COMMENTS 

IX. NEXT MEETING 

A. August 11, 2016 
 DSJ Building Assembly Chambers 
 3:00 p.m. 
 
B. Agenda Items 

X. ADJOURNMENT 



MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD JUNE 9, 2016 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Aviation Advisory Board Meeting Minute June 9, 2016 Page 1 of 3 

The regular meeting of the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Aviation Advisory Board (AAB) was 
held on Thursday, June 9, 2016, at the MSB Assembly Chambers, 350 E. Dahlia Avenue, Palmer, 
Alaska. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Chair Archie Giddings. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 

 
TAB members present and establishing a quorum were: 

Mr. David Lundin 
Mr. Barry Stanley 
Mr. Norman Chance 
Mr. Mike Pannone 
Mr. David Palmer 
Mr. Archie Giddings 
Mr. Chris Kepler (arrived at 2:50 p.m.) 
 

AAB members absent and excused were: 
Mr. Mark Stigar 
 

Staff in attendance:  
Ms. Jessica Smith, Transportation Planner II 
Ms. Josi Willcox, AAB Clerk 

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Giddings inquired if there were any changes to the agenda. 
 
GENERAL CONSENT: The agenda was approved without objection. 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mr. Giddings. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A. January 19, 2016, regular meeting minutes 
 
Chair Giddings inquired if there were any changes to the minutes. 
 
GENERAL CONSENT: The January 19, 2016, regular meeting minutes were approved 
without objection. 
 
B. March 2, 2016, regular meeting minutes 
 
Chair Giddings inquired if there were any changes to the minutes. 
 



MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD JUNE 9, 2016 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Aviation Advisory Board Meeting Minute June 9, 2016 Page 2 of 3 

GENERAL CONSENT: The March 2, 2016, regular meeting minutes were approved without 
objection. 

 
V. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
The following person spoke to concerns with the public process: Mr. Eugene Carl Haberman. 
 
VI. STAFF/AGENCY/BOARD REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Wasilla Airport (Mr. Archie Giddings) 
 
Mr. Giddings gave a brief report on the status of increasing the number of lease lots and tie 
downs.  
 
B. Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport (Mr. Frank Kelly) 
 
Mr. Kelly introduced himself as the airport’s new superintendent. He gave a brief introduction 
and description of the “Fly Friendly” Program initiated by the airport to address past concerns 
with safety. 

 
C. State of Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities (DOT&PF) (Mr. Allen 

Kemplen, Planner III) 
 
Mr. Kemplen gave a brief update on projects at the Talkeetna and Big Lake Airports. He also 
introduced the project manager for the Big Lake Airport Project, Mr. Don Fancher, Yukon-
Kuskokwim Area Planner for DOT&PF. Mr. Kemplen provided an aerial photograph of the Big 
Lake Airport to be added as supplemental information.   

 
D. DOWL (Mr. Chris Cole, Aviation Planner) 
 
Mr. Cole had nothing to report.    
 
E. Matanuska Susitna Borough (Ms. Jessica Smith, Transportation Planner) 
 
Ms. Smith spoke to the Draft AAB Schedule for 2016 and upcoming items for discussion. She 
also introduced the Aviation Economic Impact brochure and explained minor changes that had 
been made. 
 
VII. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
A. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) (Ms. Sara Jansen) 
 
Ms. Jansen explained the history and purpose of the CIP. She also explained the nomination and 
vetting process. She requested feedback from the AAB before August on the currently proposed 
projects in the Aviation section of the CIP. 
 



MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH  REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD JUNE 9, 2016 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Aviation Advisory Board Meeting Minute June 9, 2016 Page 3 of 3 

Discussion ensued regarding scheduling a special meeting in July to discuss and rank aviation 
projects.  
 
[Clerk’s note: a Special AAB Meeting was scheduled for 3:00 p.m. July 6, 2016, in the Lower 
Level Conference Room of the DSJ Building.] 
 
B. Talkeetna Aviation (Aviation Advisory Board) 
 
The Board commented on Mr. Kemplen’s report on the progress of projects at the Talkeetna 
Airport. The board agreed to keep this item on the agenda. 
 
VIII. MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Chance spoke to the recent vandalism in a secured area at Merrill Field in Anchorage and his 
concerns that it could happen here in the Mat-Su Borough.  
 
Mr. Kepler thanked the board for changing the meeting start time to 3:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Palmer gave the board information regarding the Alaska Drone Racing League. He also 
provided a supplemental handout regarding Anchorage Approach’s Aircraft Weight Changes. 
 
Mr. Giddings spoke to the vandalism issue and stated that borough airports have been lucky so 
far. 
 
IX. NEXT MEETING 

 
Next Meeting Date: July 6, 2016, 3:00 p.m.  
Special Meeting: CIP 
DSJ Building, Lower Level Conference Room 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The regular meeting adjourned at 3:55 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
________________________________________________ 
Mr. David Palmer, Chair 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 
________________________________________________ 
Jessica Smith, Staff Support 
 
Minutes approved: __________ 



 

 

 

 

 

June 28, 2016 

 

 

TO:    Matanuska-Susitna Borough Transportation Advisory Board 

FROM:   Sara Jansen 

RE: Special Meeting on CIP Projects – July 7, 2016 

  

 

Attached to this memo are: 

 

 An update regarding the projects on the CIP list – with updated information 

 A revised and draft priority list and needs list of Aviation Projects  

 Draft Resolution 16-01 supporting the priority project and needs list 

 

The priority of projects and the needs list are certainly open to discussion and the Board may 

make any changes they feel are desirable. My goal was to provide a beginning document. Please 

let me know if you have any questions. I’m looking forward to seeing you next week. 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 
Planning and Land Use Department 

Planning Division 
350 East Dahlia Avenue  Palmer, AK  99645 

Phone (907) 861-7833  Fax (907) 861-7876 

www.matsugov.us 

 

http://www.matsugov.us/


Updates on Talkeetna Airport Projects 
 
 
What it said – last year’s description:  
1. Talkeetna Airport - Lease Lot Development  

(CIP ID #189) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
The project will construct a taxiway to newly created lease lots on the south ramp of the Talkeetna 
Airport and relocate the helipad further to the south. The lease lots paid for by private businesses are 
being crowded by helicopter operations in a small area. The taxiway and helipad relocation (see CIP ID 
#178 below) have been dedicated by the State of Alaska. The lease lot development is a critical need as 
it will mitigate current safety conflicts between fixed wing and rotor wing traffic. The State has already 
dedicated the land for the lease lots. Businesses on the lots serve the Borough and the entire state. The 
project will contribute to the economic development of the Borough.  

Funding Needed: $500,000 
 
Update:  June 27, 2016:  The state is constructing the taxiways to the lease lots and to the runways, but 
not the lease lots themselves.  
 
Staff Recommendation: Update nomination to reflect what is currently happening and move to Needs 
List.  
 
New Description: “The project will construct a taxiway to newly created lease lots on the south ramp of 
the Talkeetna Airport. The lease lot development is a critical need as it will mitigate current safety 
conflicts between fixed wing and rotor wing traffic. The State has already dedicated the land for the 
lease lots which are paid for by private businesses. The project will contribute to the economic 
development of the Borough.” 
 
 

 
 

 4. Talkeetna Airport - New Helicopter Pad and Parking  
(CIP ID #178) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project calls for the relocation of the Talkeetna Airport helipad to an area near the east end of the 
runway. The existing helipad is located in the 100 year floodplain. Residents of the community of 
Talkeetna and the National Guard, as well as tourists visiting the area, will benefit from the re-location. 
It is anticipated the project will take two years to complete and is a component of the airport's master 
plan. 

Funding Needed: $2.1 Million 
 
Update:  June 27, 2016:  This project is not included in the current construction plans, but is still on the 
master plan for the airport.  
 
Staff Recommendation: Leave on priority list. 
 
 
 



 
 
5. Talkeetna Airport - New Apron at North End  

(CIP ID #177) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will expand commercial, General Aircraft (GA) and transient aircraft parking. The project will 
construct a transient parking apron and pad for the future GA and lease lot apron development. This 
project will benefit the community of Talkeetna through increased economic development as well as 
other Borough and non-Borough residents who fly into Talkeetna and need an area to park their aircraft. 
This project is supported by the Talkeetna Airport Master Plan and is a companion project to CIP ID 
#189, Lease Lot Development.   

Funding Needed: $1.53 Million 
 
Update:  June 27, 2016:  Part of the current project at the Talkeetna Airport  
 
Staff Recommendation: Move to needs list, with a funding amount of TBD.  
 
 

 
6. Regional Float Plane Facility Site Evaluation 

(CIP ID #176) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
The RASP 2 will further refine Regional Float Plane Facility site location work done in the Regional 
Aviation System Plan,  

Funding Needed: $100,000 
 

 
Update:  June 27, 2016:  The regional float plane facility is part of the second Regional Airport System 
Plan (RASP2). The draft plan is expected in September, 2016. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Drop from document. Project is almost complete, no additional funds are 
needed. 
 
Option: Once the RASP2 is finalized, the Aviation Board may wish to offer another nomination in 
reference to a float plane facility next years. 
 

 
 

 
The three vacancies on the priority list will be filled with the next three projects with the 
highest scores. Those projects will be added to the end of the list.  
 



 
Aviation Projects                                                Page 1 
FY 2018-2023 Capital Improvement Program                    

 

Aviation 
 

PRIORITY PROJECTS  

1. Big Lake Airport - Two-Bay Equipment Building and Front End Loader (CIP #174) 

2. Willow Airport - Taxiway Improvements, Construction of Access Roads, Signage & Fencing 

(CIP #187) 

3. Talkeetna Airport - New Helicopter Pad and Parking (CIP #178)  

4. Willow Airport - Senior Center Access Road Relocation (CIP #184) 

5. Willow Airport - Install Automated Weather Observation System (CIP #188) 

6. Willow Airport - Highway Crossing Improvements (CIP #182) 

7. Wasilla Airport - Runway 3/21 Extension - Phase 1 (CIP #179) 

8. Willow Airport - Helicopter Pad and Parking (CIP #181) 

9. Willow Airport - Public Float Plane Dock (CIP #183) 

10. Willow Airport - Taxiway and Apron Surface Hardening (CIP #186) 

Project Descriptions 

 
1. Big Lake Airport - Two-Bay Equipment Building and Front End Loader  

(CIP ID #174) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 

This project will construct a two-bay equipment building and purchase a front end loader for snow 
removal at the airport. Equipment for maintaining the airport must currently be driven from the Palmer 
ADOT&PF maintenance facility. This project will save countless hours of equipment running time and 
equipment operator’s time in having to bring maintenance staff and equipment from Palmer to Big Lake.  
Equipment movement and return occurs on heavy snow days, adversely impacting already dangerous 
driving conditions. Reduced liability regarding employee and citizen endangerment would occur if the 
building and equipment were located at the Big Lake Airport. Many gallons of fuel will also be saved in 
not having to make this journey.  

Funding Needed: $725,000 
 

2. Willow Airport - Taxiway Improvements, Construction of Access Roads, Signage, and Fencing 
(CIP ID #187) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
The project will construct a taxiway between the Willow Airport apron and Runway 13, improve the 
taxiway connection to Runway 31, and resurface and provide dust control on taxiways. Users of the 
Willow Airport will benefit from this one year project.  The project will also complete the fencing and 
signage of the Willow Airport to increase airport security, decrease vandalism, and prevent casual access 



 
Aviation Projects                                                Page 2 
FY 2018-2023 Capital Improvement Program                    

 

to the airport. A portion of the airport adjacent to the Parks Highway has been fenced, but is not 
complete. Commercial businesses, airplane owners, and pilots that work at the Willow Airport will 
benefit from this project. Fencing is included in the Willow Airport Master Plan as a near-term 
improvement.   

Funding Needed: $1.7 Million 
 
3. Talkeetna Airport - New Helicopter Pad and Parking  

(CIP ID #178) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project calls for the relocation of the Talkeetna Airport helipad to an area near the east end of the 
runway. The existing helipad is located in the 100 year floodplain. Residents of the community of 
Talkeetna and the National Guard, as well as tourists visiting the area, will benefit from the re-location. 
It is anticipated the project will take two years to complete and is a component of the airport's master 
plan. 

Funding Needed: $2.1 Million 
 

4. Willow Airport - Senior Center Access Road Relocation  
(CIP ID #184) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will separate Willow Senior Housing traffic from aircraft taxiing traffic by relocating the 
access road to the Willow Senior Housing. Currently all traffic uses the same route: Willow Senior 
Housing access was linked into the existing access for aircraft moving from Willow Lake to the Willow 
Airport runway facilities. For safety, the two access roads need to be separated. Residents and visitors of 
the Willow Senior Housing units as well as aircraft owners and pilots will benefit from this project. This is 
included in the Willow Airport Master Plan as a near-term improvement.   

Funding Needed: $350,000 
 

5. Willow Airport - Install Automated Weather Observation System 
(CIP ID #188) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will install an automated weather observation system and construct secondary access roads 
at each end of the airport runway. The automated weather observation system will also be available via 
the internet to Alaska residents statewide who may be travelling through the area and need up-to-the-
minute weather information. Secondary access roads at each end of the runway will provide access for 
maintenance and fire and rescue operations.  

Funding Needed: $1 Million 
 
6. Willow Airport - Highway Crossing Improvements  

(CIP ID #182) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will provide vehicles on the Parks Highway electronic warning that a plane is crossing the 
highway from Willow Lake to the Willow Airport upland facilities. The current signage is not adequate. 
This project will provide increased safety for all users of the Parks Highway as well as the pilots and 
maintenance staff taking planes across the highway. This is included in the Willow Airport Master Plan 
as a near-term improvement.  

Funding Needed: $500,000 
 
 



 
Aviation Projects                                                Page 3 
FY 2018-2023 Capital Improvement Program                    

 

7. Wasilla Airport - Runway 3/21 Extension - Phase 1 
(CIP ID #179) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will extend the current 3/21 runway by 1,400 feet, bringing the total runway length to 5,100 
feet. This will allow for larger, multi-engine aircraft to land and take off at the Wasilla Airport, thereby 
increasing cargo and passenger service to the Borough’s largest community. The residents of both the 
City of Wasilla and the Borough as a whole who use the airport for transfer of freight and passengers will 
benefit. The improvement is supported by the Wasilla Airport Master Plan and is expected to take two 
to three years to complete. 

Funding Needed: TBD 
 
8. Willow Airport - Helicopter Pad and Parking 

(CIP ID #181) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will construct a helicopter landing pad and parking area at the Willow Airport. Helicopters 
currently have no designated landing area and often set down in the aircraft taxiway area or vehicle 
parking area where they must watch out for vehicles moving on the ground.  This project will provide a 
designated area which will increase safety for operations, refueling, and maintenance. This will benefit 
the users of the Willow Airport as well as Emergency Services and injured residents or non-residents 
who may be flown into this location for transfer to ground transport. The project is included in the 
Willow Airport Master Plan as a mid- or long-term improvement.    

Funding Needed: $500,000 
 
9. Willow Airport - Public Float Plane Dock  

(CIP ID #183) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will provide a public float plane dock at Willow Lake. There currently is no public float plane 
dock which makes access for entering and exiting float planes difficult, and less safe than loading from a 
dock. This improvement would likely draw more pilots to Willow Lake thereby contributing to the 
economy of the Community of Willow. 

Funding Needed: $1 Million 
 
10. Willow Airport - Taxiway and Apron Surface Hardening  

(CIP ID #186) 

Nominator:  MSB Capital Projects 
This project will harden the surface of the taxiway and apron to reduce dust and maintenance. (Local 
pilots have requested that the runway remain gravel.)  Surfacing and dust control on taxiways is 
included in the Willow Airport Master Plan as an improvement.    

Funding Needed: $500,000 
 

 



  
Aviation Projects  
2018-2023 Capital Improvement Program   
  

Aviation Needs List 

No Priority Order, Listed Alphabetically 

Big Lake Airport - Install New Lighting System  
(CIP ID #87) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will upgrade the runway light controller system, wiring, and lights increasing safety. The 
lighting system at the Big Lake Airport is not up to current safety standards. All users of the Big Lake 
Airport will benefit from the project.  

Funding Needed: $900,000 
 

Goose Bay Airport - Security Fence  
(CIP ID #175) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will install a security fence around the perimeter of the runway and parking apron thereby 
providing a safe and obstacle free runway as well as a secure place to park aircraft. This project will 
provide increased safety for plane owners and users of the Goose Bay Airport at the end of Knik-Goose 
Bay Road, one of the fastest growing areas of the state.  

Funding Needed: $600,000 
 

Talkeetna Airport - New Apron at North End  
(CIP ID #177) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will expand commercial, General Aircraft (GA) and transient aircraft parking. The project will 
construct a transient parking apron and pad for the future GA and lease lot apron development. This 
project will benefit the community of Talkeetna through increased economic development as well as 
other Borough and non-Borough residents who fly into Talkeetna and need an area to park their aircraft. 
This project is supported by the Talkeetna Airport Master Plan and is a companion project to CIP ID 
#189, Lease Lot Development.   

Funding Needed: TBD 
 
Talkeetna Airport - Lease Lot Development  

(CIP ID #189) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
The project will construct a taxiway to newly created lease lots on the south ramp of the Talkeetna 
Airport. The lease lot development is a critical need as it will mitigate current safety conflicts between 
fixed wing and rotor wing traffic. The State has already dedicated the land for the lease lots which are 
paid for by private businesses. The project will contribute to the economic development of the Borough. 

Funding Needed: TBD 
 
Willow Airport - Apron Space for Tie-Downs at South End  

(CIP ID #180) 

Nominator: MSB Capital Projects 
This project will construct an aircraft tie-down apron pad at the Willow Airport where none currently 
exists. Users of the Willow Airport will benefit from this project as well as the community of Willow in 
increased economic development. 

Funding Needed: $500,000 



Matanuska-Susitna Borough Resolution Serial No. 16-01 

Aviation Advisory Board Page 1 of 2 

 

         

 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH 

AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD  

RESOLUTION SERIAL NO. 16-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH AVIATION ADVISORY BOARD 

RECOMMENDING PRIORITY AVIATION PROJECTS TO BE INCLUDED IN THE 

MATANUSKA-SUSITNA BOROUGH CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR FISCAL 

YEARS 2018 – 2023. 

WHEREAS, the Aviation Advisory Board reviewed the projects 

nominated for inclusion in the FY 2016 - 2021 Capital 

Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Aviation Advisory Board recognizes the 

importance of long range planning for development; and  

WHEREAS, the aviation projects address a well documented 

need and are supported by the Borough’s Aviation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, improved aviation facilities and improvements will 

support diversified economic development which benefits the 

entire Matanuska-Susitna Borough; and  

WHEREAS, staff reviewed the projects against the evaluation 

criteria established for all nominations to the Capital 

Improvement Program to create a prioritized list; and  

WHEREAS, the Aviation Advisory Board reviewed the 

prioritized list of nominations for inclusion in the Capital 

Improvement Program.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Matanuska-Susitna 

Borough Aviation Advisory Board respectfully recommends that the 

following projects be included as the top ten Aviation projects 

in the FY 2018-2023 Capital Improvement Program:  

1. Big Lake Airport - Two-Bay Equipment Building and Front 

End Loader  

2. Willow Airport - Taxiway Improvements, Construction of 

Access Roads, Signage & Fencing 

3. Talkeetna Airport - New Helicopter Pad and Parking  



Matanuska-Susitna Borough Resolution Serial No. 16-01 

Aviation Advisory Board Page 2 of 2 

 

4. Willow Airport - Senior Center Access Road Relocation  

5. Willow Airport - Install Automated Weather Observation 

System  

6. Willow Airport - Highway Crossing Improvements  

7. Wasilla Airport - Runway 3/21 Extension - Phase 1  

8. Willow Airport - Helicopter Pad and Parking  

9. Willow Airport - Public Float Plane Dock  

10.Willow Airport - Taxiway and Apron Surface Hardening; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the following projects in the FY 

2018 - 2022 Capital Improvement Program as the Aviation Needs 

List: 

1. Big Lake Airport - Install New Lighting System 

2. Goose Bay Airport - Security Fencing  

3. Talkeetna Airport - New Aprons at North End 

4. Talkeetna Airport – Lease Lot Development 

5. Willow Airport - Apron Space for Tie-Downs at South End 

 

ADOPTED by the Matanuska-Susitna Borough Aviation Advisory 

Board on this 7th day of July, 2016.  

 

 

 _______________________________ 

 Archie Giddings, CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________       

Jessica Smith, Planner II 

Staff Support 

 


	MinutesDraft20160609.pdf
	Mr. David Palmer, Chair
	ATTEST:
	________________________________________________
	Jessica Smith, Staff Support
	Minutes approved: __________




